NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
MINUTES
June 5, 2024

Newberry County Council met on Wednesday, June 5, 2024, at 6:05 p.m. in Council
Chambers at the Courthouse Annex, 1309 College Street, Newberry, SC, for a regular
scheduled meeting.

Notice of the meeting was duly advertised, as required by law.

PRESENT: Todd Johnson, Chairman (attended virtually)
Robert N. Shealy, Vice-Chairman
Leon Fulmer Jr., Council Member
Les Hipp, Council Member
Travis Reeder, Council Member
Johnny Mack Scurry, Council Member
Karl Sease, Council Member
Jeff Shacker, County Administrator
Beverly Brehmer, Deputy Clerk to Court
Karen Brehmer, Deputy County Administrator
Captain Ben Chapman, NCSO
Debbie Cromer, Finance Director
Beth Folk, Clerk to Court
Donna Lominack, Auditor
Liz McDonald, Assessor
Eric Nieto, I.T. Director
Karen Lindler Smith, Treasurer
Crystal Waldrop, Purchasing Director
Andrew Wigger, Clerk to Council/PIO

MEDIA: Kelly Duncan, The Newberry Observer
Mr. Shealy called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.

Mr. Shealy led the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.

NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024
MINUTES
PAGE 1



1. Adoption of Consent Agenda:

a. Newberry County Council Work Session — May 15, 2024.

b. Newberry County Council Meeting - May 15, 2024.

c. Newberry County Council Public Safety and Courts Committee
- May 20, 2024

e Mr. Fulmer made a motion to adopt the minutes as
presented; Mr. Scurry provided the second and the
motion was approved 7-0.

2. Additions, Deletions & Adoption of the Agenda.

e Mr. Scurry made a motion to adopt the agenda as
presented; Mr. Sease provided the second and the
motion was approved 7-0.

3. Public Appearance:

a. Alan Jenkins, Chairman of the Newberry County Republican
Party.

e Mr. Jenkins said part of his duties as chairman is to
recruit and assist those interested in running for
public office and it was during that duty that he
discovered the only qualification for running for
county treasurer and auditor is to be 18 years of age
and registered to vote. He added that the current
county budget is more than $78 million dollars and
these positions hold significant responsibility over the
county’s finances. He said those positions should be

NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024
MINUTES

PAGE 2



filled by individuals with the appropriate educational
background and experience.

Mr. Jenkins said in many counties across the United
States, these roles are hired positions requiring
relevant qualifications. He said in Greenwood County,
the treasurer is required to have a bachelor’s degree
in business administration or a related field. He said
this ensures those handling public funds understand
financial management and principles. He said the
current system leaves room for unqualified
individuals to manage public funds and this could
lead to mismanagement or misuse of funds that
would ultimately impact all residents of Newberry
County. He said the county needs professionals who
understand fiscal policy, budgeting processes,
auditing standards and not just any registered voter
who is 18 years of age.

Mr. Jenkins said let us advocate for change, ensure
they entrust the county’s finances into capable hands
by making the county treasurer and auditor hired
positions with appropriate qualifications.

Mr. Jenkins said the Newberry Republican Party
started a petition and have discovered there is broad
interest throughout the county to make this change.
He said due to timing, they are asking council to use
an ordinance to add the questions on this year’'s
General Election ballot to allow the citizens of
Newberry County to decide if this is the direction they
choose going forward.

Mr. Jenkins said this is in no way reactionary to the
performance and service of the current treasurer and
auditor, but an effort to protect Newberry County and
its future moving forward.

NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024
MINUTES

PAGE 3



4. A Proclamation declaring June 19, 2024, Juneteenth in recognition of
the abolition of slavery in the United States of America.

Mr. Shealy read the Proclamation as follows: WHEREAS,
President Abraham Lincoln signed the Emancipation
Proclamation on January 1, 1863, declaring the slaves in
Confederate territory free, paving the way for the passing
of the 13th Amendment, which formally abolished
slavery in the United States of America; and WHEREAS,
word about the signing of the Emancipation Proclamation
was delayed some two and one half years, to June 19,
1865, in reaching authaorities and African-Americans in
the South and Southwestern United States; and
WHEREAS, Emancipation Day observations are held on
different days in different states in the South and
Southwest, and in other parts of the nation; and
WHEREAS, June 19th has a special meaning to African-
Americans, and is called "JUNETEENTH", combining the
words June and Nineteenth, and has been celebrated by
the African-American community for over 150 years; and
WHEREAS, the annual Juneteenth celebration in the
County of Newberry will take place on June 15, 2024.
NOW, THEREFORE, Newberry County Council hereby
declares June 19, 2024, as JUNETEENTH in the County of
Newberry, South Carolina, and urges all citizens to
become more aware of the significance of this celebration
in African-American History and in the heritage of our
nation and county, as well as encourages all citizens to
attend the Juneteenth celebration on June 15, 2024.
PROCLAIMED AND APPROVED this 5t day of June 2024.
Mr. Hipp made a motion to publish the Proclamation; Mr.
Sease provided the second and the motion was approved
7-0.

NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024
MINUTES

PAGE 4



5. Consideration of Annual Indexing of Elected Officials’ Salaries.

e Mr. Hipp said they have budgeted four percent of
COLA (cost of living adjustments) for all employees,
and he would like to make a motion that that be
across the board for employees and elected officials,
excluding Newberry County Council, but they apply
that uniformly. Mr. Reeder provided the second and
the motion was approved 7-0.

e Mr. Hipp said, as a clarification, in addition the county
will be rewarding certain department individuals with
a retention increase, separate from the four percent
COLA and that will be done for some of the county’s
operators and law enforcement.

6. Ordinance No. 05-01-2024. An Ordinance acting on a request to amend
the official Zoning Map established pursuant to Zoning Ordinance No.
12-24-01 as revised and amended by Zoning Ordinance No. 06-11-16
and codified in Chapter 153 of the Newberry County Code of Ordinances,
establishes zoning classification and districts so as to rezone one (1) real
estate parcel totaling eleven and seventy hundredths (11.70) acres
designated as TMS No. 336-3 from GC-General Commercial to Ind-
Industrial.

a. Third Reading.

e With there being no changes to the ordinance, Mr.
Sease made a motion to approve third reading; Mr.
Reeder provided the second and the motion was
approved 7-0.

NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024

MINUTES



7. Ordinance No. 05-03-2024. An Ordinance to provide appropriations for
the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025, for
the Newberry County budget for County Ordinary purposes and for other
County purposes for which the County may levy a tax and receive
revenues; to provide for the levy of taxes on all taxable personal and real
property in Newberry County for all county purposes, including sufficient
tax to pay the principal and interest on outstanding indebtedness of
Newberry County payable during said fiscal year; to provide for matters
relating to Newberry County; and to provide for the expenditure of said
taxes and other revenues received by the county during said fiscal year,
and to provide for borrowing in anticipation of tax collections by the
issuance of one or more tax anticipation notes, if necessary.

a. Third Reading.

e Mr. Scurry made a motion to approve third reading; Mr.
Reeder provided the second and the motion was
approved 7-0.

e Mr. Johnson abstained from anything related to
Nicholson Business Systems and WTH Technology.

8. Ordinance No. 06-01-2024. An Ordinance to amend the text of the official
Zoning Ordinance of Newberry County, South Carolina, as codified in
Chapter 153 of the Code of Ordinances of Newberry County, to establish
regulations for the issuance of permits for the keeping of chickens on a
non-commercial basis on residential properties in Newberry County.

a. First Reading.

e Mr. Sease made a motion to approve first reading; Mr.
Scurry provided the second and the motion was
approved 7-0.

e Mr. Johnson said he is absolutely in favor of this
ordinance, and it is something they need to do.

NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024
MINUTES

JAGGE G
FAIE D



9. County Council may take action(s) following executive session on matters
discussed during executive session.

e Mr. Hipp made a motion to allow Newberry County
Administration to change their current general and
liability property insurance coverage to SCAC
Insurance for their current carrier, saving the county a
significant amount of money, Mr. Fulmer provided the
second.

e Mr. Hipp said they are not doing it arbitrarily, this gives
the county an opportunity to increase coverage, reduce
some of the county’'s deductibles and overall save cost
on insurance. He said he appreciates what
administration and staff have done in their research to
always try and save taxpayers money.

e Mr. Shealy said anytime they can save money and have
better insurance, that is not normal, so they are very
fortunate and thanks for the hard work researching
that.

e Mr. Johnson said not only are they going to save
money, this is not something they are doing lightly, but
something they have been looking at for a couple of
years and the training opportunities and the liability
reductions alone make this worth it, much less the
$100,000 savings that they will be able to accomplish
for the taxpayers

e The motion was approved 7-0.

10. Appointments.
a. Central Midlands Council of Governments.

e Mr. Hipp made a motion to appoint Councilman Sease
to the Central Midlands Council of Governments; Mr.

NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024
MINUTES

PAGE 7



Reeder provided the second and the motion was
approved 7-0.

11. Public Comments.

Auditor Donna Lominack said she is not sure why Mr.
Jenkins and the Republican Party want Newberry County to
change their form of government from County
Administrator to County Manager, which requires the
auditor to be appointed and not elected. She said only two
counties in the state have the County Manager form of
government. She said this was tried in 2006, but the
council at that time voted it down because as she said
Councilman John Caldwell stated, “this is the most
ridiculous thing I've heard in the last 25 years. This is
totally out of line to even consider with all of the success
we have had with this form of government.” Ms. Lominack
said she has run for office five times, with opposition the
very first time. She said she wants council to know that all
five times she was asked to switch parties and each time
she asked what can you do for me that the Democratic
Party cannot do. She said the Auditor’s Office is an elected
office, but politics does not enter into the operations of the
office, and they are governed by state law, and it is her
policy to treat all citizens equally. Ms. Lominack said she
does not want to see the rights of the people taken away by
removing elected officials. Ms. Lominack asked what she
has done since 2009 to make the Republican Party want
this, except not change parties. Ms. Lominack said she has
collaborated closely with the council, administrators and
staff to make sure Newberry County taxes were held at a
minimum. She added that no one has called or visited her
office pertaining to the petition that is going around stating
that the current system leaves room for unqualified

NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024
MINUTES

PAGE 8



individuals, and she takes great offense to this statement
as she is the most qualified individual for the office. Ms.
Lominack said at an open council meeting, a previous
administrator stated, “she was the best auditor in the
state.” She added that she has served on many committees
for the auditors throughout the state and she has served as
president of three different organizations that auditors
belong to. She said several individuals have informed her
that the position of county auditor could go to an individual
that is not qualified if Newberry County citizens are allowed
to vote for the auditor. She said she has confidence and
respect for Newberry County citizens that they would vote
for the person that is qualified and not vote for an
unqualified candidate and they have been voting for this
office since 1868 when Summerfield Montgomery was
elected. Ms. Lominack said she has relatives and friends
that are veterans and they fought so she could have the
right to vote, and she strongly feels she'd be letting them
down if she did not voice her opinion on Mr. Jenkins' and
the Republican Party’s proposal.

o Mr. Reeder said he totally agrees, and his motto is, if

it is not broken there is nothing to be fixed.

Treasurer Karen Lindler Smith said she was hired in the
Treasurer’s Office in 1988 by Mr. George Summer and she
has worked her way up from the counter to being treasurer.
She said she has been in the office for 36 years; she is very
qualified, and she likes being elected so she has a voice for
the people. She said she enjoys working with people and
helps with problems. She said she takes offense to them
saying she is not qualified. In her opinion, a County
Manager type of government would put control more than
needed to one person. Ms. Smith said she goes through
county audits every year and they’'ve not had a problem and
like everybody else said, if it is not broken, don't fix it.

NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024
MINUTES

PAGE 9



Mr. Michael Tumm spoke on the ordinance regarding the
keeping of chickens. He said he re-wrote the ordinance to
include that it is fair and equitable to all neighbors and
most importantly, to the environment of Lake Murray. The
first, he said, to make it fairer he included in his provision
11, he said the chicken coop must have screening, this
would allow the neighbors not to be able to see chickens
that do not want to. He said he does not want to be able to
see, smell or hear chickens, he thinks it is only fair that
they have screenings and he said he took that particular
ordinance from Lexington County. The second, he belongs
to Lake Murray Watch and his property is on Lake Murray
and he thinks that the chicken coop should be 75-feet from
the environmental buffer. He said he talked to zoning last
week, he said the way it is written, 50-feet from the 360,
which puts it 25-feet into the environmental buffer. He said
the question was whose land is that, he said in some cases
it belongs to Dominion and other cases it belongs to the
owners, and they will be in conflict with Project 16 of Lake
Murray, the federal standards, he said that needs to be
changed. The third, his neighbor has an illegal chicken
coop that has been there for two years, and he putin a
grandfather clause that says if the chicken coops meet
today’s standards, and give time to bring up to standards,
determined by county ordinance. He asks council to
consider those changes.

o Mr. Hipp asked administrator to take Mr. Tumm’s
recommendations in form of amendments so council
can vote on each recommendation along with the
second reading and they can vote to approve any, all
or none at second reading.

Ms. Marlene Spurgin said that she has not read the entire
ordinance regarding the keeping of chickens, but it says
you are limited to the keeping of six chickens. She said her
daughter lives in Cincinnati proper and they are allowed to

NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024
MINUTES

PAGE 10



have up to 12 chickens based on the size of their lot. She
said this is a very rural county, outside of the City of
Newberry, and that is something council needs to look at,
allow for someone with a larger property to have a larger
number of chickens because someone that has a very small
lot, six chickens are fine but someone who depends on that
for their food supply might want to do 12 chickens. If they
have a larger lot area, and someone may have three acres,
and can manage 12 chickens just as well as six.

o Mr. Hipp said they could add that to the proposed
amendment.

Clerk to Court Beth Folk asked if the proposed ordinance is
for the whole county or just the lake.

o Mr. Shealy said this is for Newberry County. Mr.
Shacker said this ordinance creates chickens as a
conditional use within all of Newberry County's
Residential Districts, except R2 (the county’s largest,
most expansive district) where they are already
allowed.

o Ms. Folk asked if she can keep her 16 chickens and
not do anything. Mr. Shacker said yes as she is in R2.

12. Comments/Requests from County Administrator.

Mr. Shacker said they have had some good discussions.

13. Comments/Requests from Council.

Mr. Fulmer thanked everyone for coming out and it is a
good day when citizens are involved in their
government. He further thanked those who spoke for
their comments.
Mr. Hipp said a dear friend of his passed away the night
before and he was an appointee on the Joint Planning
NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024
MINUTES
PAGE 11



Commission and he served the county in a voluntary
position for many years and he'd like everyone to keep
Vic Terrana in their prayers, and his family.

Mr. Scurry thanked all elected officials for fighting for
their jobs and telling the world they are running now or
running later. He said whatever it takes, they should
stay and do that and do not let him or anyone else
change their minds. He said they ran that job, they are
running it now very successfully, don’t let anyone
change their minds. He said continue to do what they
are doing now, and God bless you.

Mr. Reeder said he agrees with that because if they
start changing things, they don’t know where they
might be. He said things are running very well right
now and each and every person has an opportunity to
run for that position, if they choose to do so. They don't
have to put in a new county system. He said he thinks
they are doing well, and he thinks the majority of the
county thinks they are doing well and there may be a
few out there that want to change things and that is the
problem with the country now, busy trying to change
things that are already right. He said they need to think
before they mention stuff that will not make Newberry
County a better place because this county is where it
needs to be.

Mr. Sease thanked everyone for coming out and
participating, he thanked Ms. Lominack and Ms. Smith
for getting up and talking about their positions and
their background and history and everyone getting up
and talking about the chicken ordinance and adding
things they may not have thought about to help those
in the community. He also wanted to thank council for
being appointed and is looking forward to serving on
the Central Midlands County of Governments and

NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024
MINUTES
PAGE 12



hopefully he'll be able to do such a job as Mr. Shealy
did before him.

o Mr. Shealy said he is glad to see everyone out and to
hear everyone's voice and that is why they are elected
to do what the citizens ask of them. Mr. Shealy said Mr.
Vic will be missed greatly and he served his county well.

14. Future meetings:

Executive Committee - June 10 at 6 p.m.

Newberry County Council Work Session — June 19 at 5 p.m.
Newberry County Council - June 19 at 6 p.m.
Independence Day - July 4 — Offices Closed.

Public Safety and Courts Committee - July 8 at 6 p.m.
Newberry County Council Work Session — July 17 at 5 p.m.
Newberry County Council - July 17 at 6 p.m.

© "o an oy

15. Adjournment.

e Mr. Hipp made a motion to adjourn; Mr. Fulmer provided the
second and the motion was approved 7-0.

NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024
MINUTES

oA

PAGE 13



NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL

L

Ro/bert Shealy, Vice Cbﬁlrman

e

Andrew Wigger, Clerk to Council

7
Minutes Approved: & '/7 2017

NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
JUNE 5, 2024
MINUTES
PAGE 14



